W [arth
Reporting

Services

Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/csd/ipm17/

Vol. 5 No. 267

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Wednesday, 25 February 2009

CSD-17 IPM HIGHLIGHTS:
TUESDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 2009

The Intersessional Preparatory Meeting (IPM) for the
17th session of the Commission on Sustainable Development
(CSD-17) discussed agriculture during the morning and rural
development during the afternoon.

AGRICULTURE

Chair Verburg invited contributions highlighting policies
and measures that have worked and why, and how they
might be replicated and scaled up. Panelist Norman Uphoff,
Cornell University, presented an alternative approach to the
green revolution and demonstrated its superior ecological and
productivity outputs. Panelist Sarah Scherr, Ecoagriculture
Partners, presented a green strategy for food security and
proposed that: a global summit be convened to frame such a
strategy; Copenhagen place a high priority on agriculture and
land-use systems; and a facility to help farming communities
plan for agriculture, environment and climate resilience be
established.

The G-77/CHINA underscored the need for a green
revolution, and elaborated requisite national and global policies.
The European Commission, on behalf of the EU, highlighted
some of the challenges under the Johannesburg commitments. He
also expressed support for a Global Partnership for agriculture,
food security and nutrition and commitment to securing a
comprehensive, balanced and ambitious Doha Development
Agenda (DDA) deal. Senegal, on behalf of the AFRICAN
GROUP, underscored its support for NEPAD programs and
urged the CSD to consider recommendations from the Windhoek
Declaration. Jamaica, on behalf of AOSIS, highlighted how a
prudent approach to biofuels could solve, rather than aggravate,
development challenges. Papua New Guinea, on behalf of
PSIDS, underscored the role of participatory techniques and the
need to strengthen extension services.

Oman, for the ARAB GROUP, emphasized developing
drought-resistant plant strains, reducing post-processing losses,
and developing laboratories to improve food safety and quality
control. The US highlighted: promoting enhanced productivity;
improving livelihoods and linking producers to markets; and
empowering communities to grow markets. INDONESIA
suggested five areas for reforming the agriculture sector,
including by ensuring better synergies between agriculture and
development policies and strategies, and establishing a Regional
Food Security Framework.

CANADA highlighted conservation tillage, and said
agriculture must contribute environmental goods and services
that society values and depends on. CHINA emphasized: food
security as a primary strategy; attention to rural development
from all aspects; and strengthened dialogue and coordination.

MICRONESIA highlighted its threatened food security, appealed
for international support, and outlined national measures to
address the situation.

SOUTH AFRICA highlighted the need to make CSD a
results-oriented process. INDIA underscored the need for South-
South cooperation and for greater emphasis on organic farming,
trade barriers and small farmers. SWITZERLAND supported
the role of sustainable commercial and agriculture policies,
small-scale farming and local/regional production. MEXICO
highlighted agrosystems in promoting good ecological practices
and improving soil productivity.

The REPUBLIC OF KOREA highlighted its pledge
to provide US$100 million for food aid and agricultural
assistance to developing countries. PAKISTAN highlighted the
importance of financing, technology transfer and fair trade. The
NETHERLANDS: emphasized the need for investments to make
agricultural patterns sustainable and to stimulate markets; said
women and youth should be an integral part in the allocation
of resources; and suggested increasing investments in second
generation biofuels. FAO agreed with India on the need for an
integrated approach incorporating both organic methods and
fertilizers, and suggested broadening food crops.

Children and Youth emphasized solutions that incorporate
local and traditional knowledge. NORWAY emphasized:
increasing agricultural production in a sustainable and climate-
resilient manner; strengthening cooperation between relevant,
existing institutions rather than establishing new structures; and
supporting in situ use and preservation of genetic resources.

MALAWTI emphasized policies and evidence-based strategies
and incentives to stimulate small-scale agriculture, and supported
the 2009 Windhoek Declaration. ARGENTINA cautioned that
unilateral initiatives to measure transport costs could place high
costs on agriculture exporting countries and may be inconsistent
with WTO rules and, with ALGERIA, said distortionary
agricultural policies undermine agricultural production in
developing countries. Business and Industry underscored the role
of technology in meeting future food needs, noting the inability
of organic agriculture to do so without extensive environmental
degradation. IRAN highlighted policies targeting improved water
management in agriculture. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION
proposed, inter alia, considering biofuel risks and sustainability
criteria and enhancing knowledge and technology cooperation
and exchanges. NIGERIA highlighted existing global policy
frameworks for agriculture and noted the need to link them.

NGOs highlighted: the role of agroecology; the need to
integrate livestock in agricultural policies; and the importance
of traditional and local knowledge. JAPAN noted the role
of biofuels in mitigating climate change and revitalizing
agriculture and rural development, as long as their production
is compatible with food security concerns. CHILE expressed

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Wagaki Mwangi, Tanya Rosen, and Lynn Wagner, Ph.D. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek,
Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United
Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans
and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for
Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of
Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the
Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of
Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for
Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry
(through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin
into French has been provided by the International Organization of the Francophonie (IOF). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish has been provided by the Ministry
of Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin
may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the
Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, United States of America. The ENB Team at
CSD-17 IPM can be contacted by e-mail at <lynn@jiisd.org>.




=

RE#U[ting
Services

Wednesday, 25 February 2009

"B Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 5 No. 267 Page 2

support for a DDA breakthrough and liberalized international
trade. LIBYA highlighted the recommendations from the “Water
for Agriculture and Energy in Africa: the challenges of climate
change” conference held in Sirte, Libya, in December 2008.

Panelist Scherr highlighted the importance of getting
investments to farmers and farmer organizations, and emphasized
the need to restore degraded agricultural lands. Panelist Uphoff
said agriculture needs to be climate-proofed, including through
focusing on soil biology and plants’ root systems.

FIJ1, on behalf of PSIDS, highlighted the establishment
of the project implementation and monitoring unit within
the Ministry for Rural Development to accelerate project
implementation and coordination with other stakeholders.
KAZAKHSTAN underscored the decision to pledge US$1 billion
to support domestic agriculture and livestock infrastructure.

The MARSHALL ISLANDS stressed providing direct access
to funding mechanisms and mainstreaming climate change
challenges in future policies.

PALESTINE said conflict creates hardships for agriculture.
AUSTRALIA noted that open markets allow farmers to respond
to high food prices and supported integrating adaptation to
climate change through policies and programmes.

BRAZIL said it is willing to discuss biofuels in a scientific
and open manner, and the establishment of a global market
for biofuels could contribute positively to current challenges.
ISRAEL said applied research and extension services that
recognize the farmer as end user are needed. BARBADOS said
its efforts to provide incentives to the agricultural sector have led
farmers to invest in new technologies.

The Scientific and Technological Community emphasized
its partnership with the farming and industry communities with
a view to put the farmer at the center of agricultural dialogues,
and urged that Copenhagen include agricultural carbons in both
mitigation and adaptation. Farmers called for information about
market demand for organic products and highlighted resource
limitations. CAMBODIA urged broadening market access and
partnerships for agricultural production and supporting a 21st
Century green revolution. NAMIBIA described its weather-
related agricultural challenges and the value of markets,
technology transfer and infrastructure.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Panelist Tim Hanstad, Rural Development Institute, stressed
the importance of pro-poor land policies. He highlighted the
importance of: empowering local communities and governments,
and land ownership by women. Panelist Rosalud de la Rosa,
WOCAN (Women Organizing for Change in Agriculture and
Natural Resource Management), recommended reforming
agricultural extension institutions and using incentives to
increase the number of women enrolled and trained.

The G-77/CHINA highlighted the need for viable, realistic
and implementable policy options to address rural development,
including options that empower women and promote gender
equity. The EU said: its Common Agricultural Policy is
contributing to a stronger, more dynamic and sustainable agri-
food sector; and sustainable forest management is an integral
part of sustainable development.

The ARAB GROUP said greater efforts should be made to
promote efforts to achieve the MDGs, especially the reduction
of poverty and malnutrition, and improved education, health
and empowerment of women, and to strengthen the capacity
of women in villages. Tonga, for AOSIS, said climate adaption
should strengthen the resilience of vulnerable rural communities
and improve infrastructure. COLOMBIA emphasized the
importance of an objective, well-informed approach to biofuels.

F1JI, on behalf of PSIDS, highlighted the importance of
promoting infrastructure development, agroforestry practices,
cultural enhancement and proper management of natural
resources. CANADA supported initiatives that increase economic

diversification, strengthen capacity and promote sustainable
resource management. GUATEMALA highlighted the need for
policies promoting the use of traditional knowledge in handling
natural resources. She also welcomed policies and regulations
that implement the Cartagena Protocol on Biosafety.

SWITZERLAND highlighted the need for long-term
commitment for agro-pastoral productivity in economically
sustainable ways, integrated crop-livestock systems and access to
education, particularly for women. BOLIVIA said the prevailing
development model is unsustainable and proposed structural
transformation to a new model of development. Noting the
impact of the current financial crisis on the poor, INDONESIA
proposed including rural development in stimulus packages,
enhancing social safety nets for the poor and empowering
rural communities. The US underlined, infer alia, investing in
science and education and empowering local communities, and
highlighted several lessons learned to promote rural vitality.

Workers and Trade Unions highlighted special attention
to youth, education and vocational training, and the rights
to free association and collective bargaining. ARGENTINA
said it promotes water basin management policies. NIGERIA
emphasized access to land and inheritance rights for women,
and said the Global Environment Facility (GEF) replenishment
should increase funds for sustainable land management.

JAPAN argued for a “community-based human security
approach” to rural development, and presented the outcomes of
the Tokyo International Conference on African Development
(TICAD) 1V, held in Japan in 2008, and their implementation
by Japan. NORWAY called for strengthening female influence
and power in the agricultural sectors, and women’s position
in agriculture, including through promoting their rights and
property ownership. IRAN emphasized the plight of nomadic
communities and handicraft makers, and proposed various policy
measures, including fair income distribution and social insurance
coverage. BURKINA FASO announced that it would host the
Seventh World Forum on Sustainable Development in October
2009.

MEXICO suggested promoting micro- and medium-sized
agricultural enterprises and services that can ensure adequate
management of natural resources by combining modern
technologies with indigenous and traditional knowledge. Local
Authorities said the role of urban market infrastructure is key in
rural development. MOROCCO called for: a multilateral fund for
capacity building; financing climate change adaptation measures
and technology transfer in developing countries; and a green
revolution for Africa to increase agricultural production and
boost economic growth and food security.

IN THE CORRIDORS

On the second day of IPM, many participants speculated
about the proposals that are likely to come out of the session.
Some highlighted that biofuels have come up in statements and
corridor conversations, particularly in reference to the Chair’s
suggestion to explore the development of a voluntary set of
criteria for biofuels. Others are pleased to note that the debate
has moved beyond past international discussions of these issues,
with many speakers acknowledging that new approaches to
agriculture are needed, for example.

Meanwhile, others are giving the Chair high marks for
beginning each meeting on time and for signaling that speakers
should conclude after three minutes. Yet some are still wishing
that the discussion could involve more dialogue, particularly
after what they describe as successful dialogue experiences
during the UNEP Governing Council meeting last week. As
a starting point, one participant noted that speakers should
realize that reading one page of a printed speech will fill the
allotted three minutes. Some participants hoped that the warm
atmosphere at the Dutch-hosted reception Tuesday evening
would carry over to the second half of the IPM.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


